
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS

OCTOBER 25, 2021

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the governing body of the City of
Navasota will be held on the 25th of October, 2021 at 6:00 PM at the City Hall in the
City Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street, Navasota,
Texas 77868, at which time the following subjects will be considered, to wit:

To watch the City Council meeting live please visit the City of Navasota's Youtube
here: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCltnx7BQt0TCIYJRiZ14g5w 
 
1. Call to Order.

2. Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

3. Remarks of visitors: Any citizen may address the City Council on any matter.
Registration forms are available on the podium and/or table in the back of the city
council chambers. This form should be completed and delivered to the City
Secretary by 5:45 p.m. Please limit remarks to three minutes. The City Council will
receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a
future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City
Manager.

4. Staff Report:

(a) Airport update;

(b) Introduction of Artist in Residency;

(c) Vote for Washington Ave. campaign;

(d) City Manager message

(e) Proclamation - Municipal Court Week;

(f) Board and Commission update; and

(g) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community
interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence;
information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public
officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events
organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or
community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled
to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving
imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has
arisen after the posting of the agenda.

5. Presentation to the City Manager.



6. Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comments and
testimony regarding a voluntary annexation request submitted by James C.
Hassell for a 31.79 acre tract of land and a 31.76 acre tract of land in the James J.
Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.

7. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 980-21,
approving a voluntary annexation request submitted by James C. Hassell for a
31.79 acre tract of land and a 31.76 acre tract of land in the James J. Whitesides
Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.

8. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of September
2021.

9. Consideration and possible action on a sign ordinance appeal submitted by Grimes
County Crimes Stoppers for the construction of a free standing sign on the
property located at the Southeast corner of Spur 515 and South LaSalle street,
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.

10. Consideration and possible action on the agreement for Interim City Manager
services by and between Bleyl Interests, Inc. D/B/A Bleyl Engineering and the City
of Navasota, Texas.

11. Consideration and possible action on lease agreement between the City of
Navasota and Boy Scout Troop 361.

12. Consideration and possible action on amendment to the firm transportation and
storage agreement with Atmos Pipeline-Texas.

13. Consideration and possible action on appointments to boards and commissions.

14. Consideration and possible action on selecting proposal to contract event planning
services for the 2022 Texas Birthday Bash.

15. Executive Session:  The City Council will conduct an Executive Session in
accordance with Section 551.072, Texas Government Code, deliberation regarding
real property and discussion regarding the potential sale and/or value of City-
owned property.

16. Executive Session:  The City Council shall meet in Executive Session as permitted
by Section 551.071, Texas Government Code - Consultation with Attorney -
Dispute regarding invoice received from Symmetry Energy Solutions, LLC for
natural gas supplied to the City of Navasota for the month of February 2021, and
associated matters.

17. Reconvene in open session.

18. Consideration and possible action on approval of the Competitive Sealed Proposal
alternative delivery method, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2269,
Subchapter D, as the best-value procurement method for construction of the
Public Works Warehouse facility.



19. Discuss and possibly act upon dispute regarding invoice received from Symmetry
Energy Solutions, LLC for natural gas supplied to the City of Navasota for the
month of February 2021, and associated matters.

20. Adjourn.

DATED THIS THE 22ND OF OCTOBER, 2021

/BS/

BY: BRAD STAFFORD, CITY MANAGER

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above notice of
meeting of the governing body of the CITY OF NAVASOTA, is a true and
correct copy of said notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said
notice in the glass bulletin board, in the foyer, on the south side of the
Municipal Building as well as in the bulletin board on the north side of the
Municipal Building of the City of Navasota, Texas, a place convenient and
readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said notice was
posted on the 22nd of October, 2021 at 10:15 AM and will remain posted
continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said
meeting. Agendas may be viewed at www.navasotatx.gov.

The City Council reserves the right to convene in Executive Session at any
time deemed necessary for the consideration of confidential matters under
the Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071-551.089.

DATED THIS THE 22ND OF OCTOBER, 2021

/SMH/

BY: SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATIONS OR
INTERPRETIVE SERVICES MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS
MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE
AT(936) 825 6475 OR (936) 825 6408 OR BY FAX AT (936) 825 2403.



City Manager’s Message 

An Executive Summary of Agenda Items and Current Issues 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council Meeting 

10-25-21 

 

 

1.  Call to order 

 

2. Invocation and Pledges of Allegiance 

  

3. Remarks of Visitors 

Staff is unaware of anyone wishing to address City Council. 

 

4.  Staff Report: 

Airport update – Jennifer Reyna, Airport Manager/Interim Utility Director will 

provide a report on the development at the airport. 

 

Introduction of Artist in Residency – Two new artists moved into the Horlock 

House recently.  They will be introduced during the meeting. 

 

Vote for Washington Ave. campaign –  

 

City Manager message – Brad Stafford would like to take the opportunity to thank 

the City Council, staff, and citizens for the opportunity to work in Navasota for 

almost 16 years. 

 

Proclamation - Municipal Court Week 

 

 

5.  Presentation to the City Manager. 

 

6.  Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comments and 

testimony regarding a voluntary annexation request submitted by James C. 

Hassell for a 31.79 acre tract of land and a 31.76 acre tract of land in the 

James J. Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 

 Jim Hassell requests annexation of just over 63 acres of land where he plans to 

develop another phase of Pecan Lakes Estates. 

 

7.  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 980-

21, approving a voluntary annexation request submitted by James C. Hassell 

for a 31.79 acre tract of land and a 31.76 acre tract of land in the James J. 

Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 

 Jim Hassell requests annexation of just over 63 acres of land where he plans to 

develop another phase of Pecan Lakes Estates. 



8.  Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of 

September 2021. 

 This is the final expenditure report for the month of September 2021 and the fiscal 

year. 

 

9.  Consideration and possible action on a sign ordinance appeal submitted by 

Grimes County Crimes Stoppers for the construction of a free-standing sign 

on the property located at the Southeast corner of Spur 515 and South 

LaSalle street, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 

 Grimes County Crime Stoppers submitted a permit request to place an off-

premise sign at the corner of Spur 515 and South LaSalle.  The permit was denied 

as the sign is not permitted per code.  Connie Clements on behalf of the Grimes 

County Crime Stoppers submitted an appeal of the decision and per city code City 

Council hears the appeal. 

 

10.  Consideration and possible action on the agreement for Interim City 

Manager services by and between Bleyl Interests, Inc. D/B/A Bleyl 

Engineering and the City of Navasota, Texas. 

 

11.  Consideration and possible action on lease agreement between the City of 

Navasota and Boy Scout Troop 361. 

 Boy Scout Troop 361 submitted the cost estimate for repairs at the August Horst 

pro-shop.  The plan is for the city to lease the pro-shop to the scouts for use as a 

scout hut.  Staff suggests an agreement for 5 years at allow the repairs to 

substitute for rent.  This plan would be equal to rent of $704.62 per month for 5 

years. 

 

12.  Consideration and possible action on amendment to the firm transportation 

and storage agreement with Atmos Pipeline-Texas. 

 Atmos Pipeline submitted an amendment to the firm transportation and storage 

agreement.  The changes look to be minor, with the main change in wording of 

storage facilities. 

 

13.  Consideration and possible action on appointments to boards and 

commissions. 

 See sheet attached to agenda item for list of applicants. 

 Staff advertised board and commission appointments and contacted current 

members to gauge their interest in serving on a board or commission.  The results 

are included in the packet for your consideration. 

 

14.       Consideration and possible action on selecting proposal to contract event 

planning services for the 2022 Texas Birthday Bash. 

 With the Marketing and Communications Coordinator position vacancy staff has 

been reviewing options to ensure the 10th annual Texas Birthday Bash is planned 

and executed successfully. As a result of this effort staff determined hiring a 

professional event planning company will be the best option for the 2022 event. 



Staff has received 3 proposals from various agencies offering event planning 

services for the 2022 Texas Birthday Bash.  

 

15.  Executive Session:  The City Council will conduct an Executive Session in 

accordance with Section 551.072, Texas Government Code, deliberation 

regarding real property and discussion regarding the potential sale and/or 

value of City-owned property. 

 

16.  Executive Session:  The City Council shall meet in Executive Session as 

permitted by Section 551.071, Texas Government Code - Consultation with 

Attorney - Dispute regarding invoice received from Symmetry Energy 

Solutions, LLC for natural gas supplied to the City of Navasota for the 

month of February 2021, and associated matters. 

 

17.  Reconvene in open session.  

 

18.  Consideration and possible action on approval of the Competitive Sealed 

Proposal alternative delivery method, pursuant to Texas Government Code 

Chapter 2269, Subchapter D, as the best-value procurement method for 

construction of the Public Works Warehouse facility. 

 

19.  Discuss and possibly act upon dispute regarding invoice received from 

Symmetry Energy Solutions, LLC for natural gas supplied to the City of 

Navasota for the month of February 2021, and associated matters. 

 

20.  Adjourn. 

 

 

Calendar of Events 

 

November 8th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

November 11th    Veteran’s Day 

City Offices Closed 

 

November 25th & 26th   Thanksgiving Holiday 

City Offices Closed 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Brad Stafford 

City Manager 

 



 
 
 
 

Vision Statement: 
 

Navasota 2027:  What America Wants To Be 
“A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service-oriented, 

close-knit community filled with 
historical charm and promise for people and business.” 

 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains 
our heritage, culture, and uniqueness while 

maximizing our economic and social development.” 
 
 
 



 
 
 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA 
COUNCIL LEADERSHIP POLICY 

 
 
It is the desire of the Navasota City Council to demonstrate responsible 
leadership by: 
 

(a) Establishing a 2027 Strategic Growth Map for the City of Navasota. 
 
(b) Assuring stable and effective city operations. 
 
(c) Developing and adopting policies that will guide the growth of the City 

of Navasota. 
 
(d) Facilitating private/public sector partnerships at the local, regional, 

state and federal level that will invest in the future of Navasota. 
 
(e) Ensuring all Navasota boards, commissions and committees are 

aligned with the Council’s growth policies. 



  

 

 

 
 

Report 

 

and 

 

Strategic Plan 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted 

April 26, 2021 

 

 

Prepared and Facilitated 

By 

Ron Cox Consulting 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

REPORT AND STRATEGIC PLAN 

COUNCIL/STAFF  

RETREAT 

 

CITY OF NAVASOTA 
  

February 12, 2021 

 

Introduction 
 

On February 12, 2021, the Mayor, City Council and staff of the City of Navasota met for 

a retreat planning session. The purpose of this meeting was twofold. 

 

• Confirm and expand the governance philosophy for the City Council. Included in 

that is identifying key elements of the Council’s vision for Navasota. 

• Prepare a strategic plan for the city. 

 

The Mayor, Council and staff freely worked together, and their work was exemplary in 

all respects. Ron Cox facilitated the process. 

 

Governance 

 
In their February 12, 2021 session the Council confirmed the governance policy they 

established in 2017 and expanded on it by further defining their governance philosophy. 

The Council participated in discussions about their role, together and their leadership 

responsibilities. The elements of a strong governance model are having and following 

clear vision and mission, establishing leadership and communications philosophies, and 

identifying the expectations of each other as City Council members, and the City staff, 

and of identifying and recognizing the expectations staff has of the City Council.  

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

3 

The key elements of the Governance Philosophy are leadership, communication and 

understanding and defining expectations. These define how the team will function 

together. Visioning and planning are the key elements that define what the strategies and 

goals are for the City of Navasota and what they will be to ensure the vision is ultimately 

attained. 

 

Governance Model 
 

The governance model first begins with leadership. Each member of the Council asked to 

provide input into how they will lead, communicate and a defining of expectations for 

themselves and staff. 

 

The facilitator began the process by asking each of the members why they ran and serve 

on the City Council. They responded as follows: 

 

The Mayor and Council reviewed and confirmed their Governance Policy and Rules of 

Engagement established in 2017. These are as follows. 

 

Mayor and Council members ran for the office and serve … 

 

• Had already serviced on other boards and wanted to be active in the growth to 

come. 

• To lead city in the right direction. 

• Saw growth coming and saw weaknesses in various ordinances that needed 

strengthening – now growth is really here. 

• To bring a different insight as a native of Navasota. 

• To encourage business growth and economic development. 

• Am able to serve. 

• Originally to change the direction of the city (and have done that). 

• Exciting to be a part of big decisions for the community. 

 

The facilitator then asked the members to describe the attributes they have that will 

contribute to the work of the Council. 

 

Mayor and Council have the following attributes … 

 

• Able to think outside the box on issues. 

• Business experience in the private sector. 

• Provides a technical background. 

• Brings a different point of view, being from a different generation than others on 

the Council. 

• Historical memory as a native of Navasota. 

• Love the community. 

• Committed to the community. 

• Service to the community. 

• Have the time to serve. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

4 

• Have a special needs child bringing different perspective to decision making. 

• Raised seven children and now grandchildren all in Navasota community and 

schools. 

• Different stages of our lives, bring different viewpoints. 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota will lead by … 

 

• Providing the facts. 

• Seeking and gaining understanding of the problems. 

• Listening, asking, seeking information and deciding. 

• Coming together for the greater good – compromising and building consensus. 

• Toward a common goal – betterment of Navasota. 

• Finding a win/win for all. 

• Building consensus. 

• Picking your wins carefully. 

• Not being afraid to admit you are wrong and changing your mind. 

• Being patient. 

• Being humble – not prideful or egotistical. 

• Being passionate about our city, but not dictatorial. 

• Being brave for our city. 

• Showing respect and being respectful of others. 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota will communicate … 

 

• Effectively with citizens, each other and staff… 

• Concisely. 

• Clearly. 

• Completely. 

• Seek and allow responses. 

• Seek to understand. 

• Take the time to explain the issue and resolution to each other and to citizens. 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota expect the following of each other… 

 

• Remember we all work for the citizens – Council and staff alike. 

• Set the table for the citizens on agenda items – fill in the gaps of knowledge for 

them. 

• Follow the process. 

• Be willing to slow the process down. 

• Respect each other and their opinions. 

• Be honest. 

• Be consistent. 

• Do your homework. 

• Be vulnerable – admit you do not know everything.  

• Be willing to learn. 

• Don’t take the issue personally 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

5 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota expect the following of the staff … 

 

• Set the table to explain agenda items for Council and citizens. 

• Be clear and timely in the information flow to Council – understanding and 

responding to individual council members in the way that communicates best to 

them. 

• Don’t take it personally. 

• Provide the full picture – the good, the bad, and the ugly. 

• Have patience. 

• Know your lane and stay in it. 

• Understand the chain-of-command. 

 

(It was noted that the City Council and staff should all have and respond to the same 

expectations.) 

 

The staff expects the following of the Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota (as 

defined by the City Council) … 

 

• Don’t play the “gotcha” game with staff. 

• Have an understanding of staff, their role. 

• Ask questions and don’t assume. 

• Have patience. 

• Be fair. 

• Listen to staff. 

• Be respectful to staff. 

• Seek information on what council can do to help the staff succeed. 

• Seriously consider their recommendations. 

• Attempt to solve the problems that are presented. 

• Give them clear direction. 

• Remember that staff is working for the citizens, as well as the Council. 

• Don’t put undue pressure on staff. 

• Follow the chain-of-command. 

 

Vision and Mission 

 
On February 6, the Council and senior staff discussed the elements vision they have for 

Navasota. Currently, there are is Vision Statement and Mission Statement for the City. 

After a review, the Mayor and Council identified and confirmed the key elements of the 

vision and mission for the City.  

 

Vision Statement 

 

Navasota 2027: What America wants to Be: 

A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service oriented, close-kinit community filled with 

historic charm and promise for people and business. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

6 

 

Vision Elements 

 

These elements were discussed and are presented in no particular order of priority. It was 

noted that in reviewing the Vision Statement from the Comprehensive Plan, these key 

vision elements are consistent with and embodied in the Vision Statement. 

 

• Navasota is a role model for other cities. 

• Clean. 

• Safe. 

• Friendly and inviting. 

• Historic. 

• Beautiful and manicured. 

• Successful. 

• Sustainable. 

• Full of opportunity. 

• Innovative. 

• Charming. 

 

Mission Statement 

 

To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains our heritage, culture and 

uniqueness while maximizing our economic and social development. 

 

Mission Elements 

 

These key mission elements are presented in no particular order of priority. 

 

• Committed. 

• Stay focused on the mission. 

• Dedication and desire. 

• Proper planning. 

• To communicate the Vision. 

• Provide great/exceptional customer service. 

• Clear, consistent, defined responsibilities. 

• Flexible. 

• Understanding of your role and responsibilities. 

 

Strategic Planning 

 
The facilitator led the participants in a SWOT analysis, identifying and discussing the 

strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats for the City of Navasota, both 

organizationally and in the community. The weaknesses then were divided into common 

themes – Areas of Emphasis or Vision Elements. Within each of the Areas of Emphasis, 

opportunities – strategies and goals – were identified to overcome the weaknesses. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

7 

Finally, threats were identified that if not anticipated may get in the way of 

accomplishing the strategies and goals. 

 

The participants were divided into three groups. Each group focused on strengths and 

weaknesses as follows. 

 

Strengths 

 

Group 1 

• Qualified personnel. 

• Close knit team/community. 

• Has a can-do attitude. 

• Pride in community and city organization. 

• Friendly. 

• Great leadership – Council, City Manager and staff. 

• Caring. 

• Small town charm. 

• Service oriented. 

• Open minded and welcoming. 

• Knowledgeable about work, etc. 

• Dedication. 

• Good foundation upon which to build. 

• Resilient. 

• Organization is accountable to the community. 

• Have integrity and honesty. 

• Everyone is team player. 

• Willing to admit to issues and problems. 

• Self-aware. 

• Transparent. 

• Have community support. 

• Have a multi-faceted community makeup. 

• Visionaries. 

• Excellent location. 

• Diversity in the community. 

 

Group 2 

• Great staff. 

• Buy-in from the community. 

• A community feeling. 

• Progressive. 

• Safe. 

• Leadership. 

• Proactive Council. 

• Beginning infrastructure design improvements. 

• City services. 

• Facilities. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

8 

• Partnerships. 

• Potential for growth. 

• Location. 

• History. 

• Industry. 

 

 

Group 3 

• Experience of Council and staff. 

• New councilmembers bringing energy and new ideas. 

• Leadership. 

• Collaboration. 

• Creativity. 

• Openness/inviting community. 

• Honesty/trust. 

• Stability. 

• Teamwork. 

• Loyalty and pride. 

• Service minded. 

• Relationships/friendly/user friendly. 

• Fun. 

• Commitment and dedication. 

 

 

Weaknesses 

 

Group 1 

• Lack of social and health services. 

• Minimal retail services. 

• Lack of transportation services. 

• Lack of after 5 p.m. activities. 

• Aging infrastructure. 

• Difficulty in communication from the city to the citizens. 

• Lack of finances for unfunded mandates. 

• Outside negative perception of the community. 

• Finding and retaining good staff. 

• Lack of seasoned/experienced staff at all levels. 

• Lack of citizen input/involvement. 

• Uninformed criticism from citizens. 

• Limited connectivity to high quality internet. 

• Technologically inhibited/fear of technology 

 

Group 2 

• Fear of change. 

• More work than staff can accomplish. 

• Lack of job career diversity. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

9 

• Perception of the school district. 

• Lack of rental/multifamily in the city. 

• Retail leakage. 

• Lack of amenities for social and family time. 

• Train traffic. 

• Animal control/fire department facilities need replacing. 

• Lack of internet connectivity. 

 

Group 3 

• Communication/understanding of the message. 

• People making assumptions without all the information. 

• Aging infrastructure. 

• Sometimes resistant to change. 

• Dislike of others. 

• Financial resources are limited. 

• Retention of employees. 

• Outside perception of Navasota. 

• People have long memories. 

• Lack of participation by the citizens. 

• Being required to respond to circumstances beyond our control. 

• Limited technology in the community in the city. 

 

Areas of Emphasis 

 

Reviewing the weaknesses presented resulted in the identification of five areas of 

emphasis. 

 

• Governance 

• Economic Development 

• Image/Communication 

• Infrastructure 

 

Weaknesses Rearranged 

 

The weaknesses identified above, were then summarized and arranged to be within one of 

the areas of emphasis. 

 

• Governance 

o Resistance to change. 

o Employee retention. 

o Responding to circumstances beyond city’s control. 

o Unfunded mandates. 

o Lack of participation. 

 

• Economic Development 

o Diversity in career jobs. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

10 

o Sufficient revenue for infrastructure redevelopment. 

o Retail leakage 

o Lack of social and family recreation. 

o Need for diversity in housing. 

o Social and health services. 

 

• Image/Communication 

o Negative perception of school district. 

o Negative perception of city. 

o Inability to provide information to all ages 

▪ Internally and externally. 

▪ Lack of understanding. 

▪ Criticism from the uninformed. 

▪ From city to citizens 

 

• Infrastructure 

o Train traffic. 

o Again infrastructure 

o Transportation. 

o Facilities. 

o Poor quality of internet and technology, city and citywide. 

 

 

Opportunities – Strategies and Goals 

 

The groups then brainstormed to identify opportunities to overcome the weaknesses. 

These opportunities are the basis for the strategies and goals prepared below. 

 

Governance 

• Establish a program to encourage more participation in Navasota 

government. 

o Establish and implement leadership academies. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ academy. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ police academy. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ fire academy. 

o Improve communication and strategic alignment between Council and all 

committees. 

• Establish an employee retention strategy. 

o Identify and promote the work culture, benefits of the city. 

o Promote the community and organizational culture. 

o Explore housing incentives to live and work in Navasota and attract new 

employees. 

o Cast a wider net for employees. 

o Explore opportunities for providing employee benefits that incentivize 

employment and retention. 

• Explore opportunity for a full-time grant writer. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

11 

• Provide a clear sense of direction to all boards related to economic 

development. 

o Establish an Economic Development Strategy with the NEDC 

 

(Note: there were some communications initiatives in Governance. These have been 

moved to Image/Communication to avoid repetition.) 

 

Economic Development 

• Establish a partnership with NISD, Blinn, TAMU and other institutions to 

enhance the economic development process. 

• Seek out grant opportunities. 

o Pursue grants from EDA. 

• Enhance the marketing of Navasota. 

o Marketing to fulfill housing needs. 

o Marketing of lower utility costs compared to other areas. 

o Marketing location and proximity to major metro areas in the state. 

• Seek partners to improve local health and social service providers. 

o Explore health authority with county. 

o Explore partnership with St. Joseph’s healthcare system. 

o Recruit health provider specialists (optometrists and medical providers) 

• Enhance strategic retail recruitment. 

o Continue to partner with Retail Coach. 

o Attend recruitment conferences (industry, retail, restaurants, etc.) 

 

(Note: there were some infrastructure initiatives in Economic Development. These have 

been moved to Infrastructure to avoid repetition.) 

 

Image/Communication 

• Improve the perception and image of Navasota. 

o Establish a positive campaign to promote Navasota. 

▪ Prepare both an in-person and digital message. 

o Identify target audiences. 

▪ Attend realtor conferences to tell the Navasota story. 

▪ Utilize citizens’ academies (see Governance). 

▪ Explore use of Town Hall meetings – in-person and virtual. 

• Establish a program to educate ISD students about local government. 

o Sponsor a job shadowing program for students in the city. 

• Improve communication in general with the public. (Note: moved from 

Governance) 

o Be deliberate about creating buy-in from citizens.  

▪ Inform, educate and cast the vision. 

o Prepare and implement a communication protocol. 

 

Infrastructure 

• Prepare a plan for construction of an elevated grade crossing over the 

railroad tracks. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

12 

o Identify location and right of way needs for the crossing. 

o Establish costs to city to accommodate the crossing. 

o Identify land for a substation for fire and animal control. 

o Establish contact and conversation with the railroad. 

• Prepare a capital improvements plan and program for needed city 

infrastructure. 

o Improve aging infrastructure. 

o Improve aging and inadequate facilities. 

o Expand parks, trails and bike paths. 

o Identify funding sources – bonds, grants, etc. 

• Create additional opportunity for social and family amenities. 

o Create additional sports facilities. 

o Make park improvements – trails, bike paths, etc. 

• Identify and plan for needed improvements to the community’s internet 

system. 

o Identify and review the existing systems available to the City 

▪ BVCOG Fiber Loop 

▪ Midsouth Synergies 

▪ Other 

 

Threats 

 

Finally, Council and staff identified threats to accomplishing the goals and strategies that 

have been identified. 

 

• Fear – lack of understanding of the issues and the unknown. 

• Money. 

• Economic downturn. 

• Federal and state unfunded mandates and restrictions to local government. 

• Social media. 

• Uncommitted leadership. 

• Politization of local government. 

• Suffering the unintended consequences of outside mandates. 

• Encroaching crime. 

• Another pandemic – COVID. 

• Adverse weather. 

• No response to the failing infrastructure. 

• The “cancel culture” – just turning off or destroying what one disagrees with – 

refusal to dialogue. 

• Not adapting to the change in the ideology of the culture. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

13 

City Staff Implementation Sessions 

 
April 5 and 14, 2021 

 

On April 5, 2021 the facilitator met with the City Manager and staff to review the 

outcomes of the planning session and to determine next steps for the development of the 

implementation plan. 

 

Implementation Plan Process. The staff reviewed a template to be used to develop the 

implementation portion of the planning process. During the discussions, a staff member 

was assigned as the team facilitator for the development of the implementation plan for 

each areas of emphasis. Further they began the process of developing action steps, with 

proposed timelines, and budget implications (if they were known at the time).  

 

On April 14, 2021 staff again met with the facilitator to review and complete a draft 

implementation plan. The implementation plan is included in this document.  

 

 

 

Reporting 
 

Finally, staff established reporting protocols. These protocols serve the purpose of 

keeping the staff on schedule with the implementation of strategies, keeping the City 

Manager informed, and providing regular reports to the Mayor and City Council on the 

status of the implementation of the adopted strategies. This provides for long term 

accountability toward the implementation of the Strategic Plan. 

 

Reporting Protocols  
 

• Council 

o Receives updates at least monthly from staff at Council meetings 

regarding various projects related to the strategic plan. 

o Receives formal status reports, including a semi-annual and annual report 

from staff to the City Council. 

• City Manager 

o City Manager receives regular – both formal and informal - updates from 

staff at regular staff meetings on progress of assignments. 

 

City Council Approval 

April 26, 2021 
 

On TBD, 2021, the City Council reviewed their work as well as the work of the staff 

since the planning session in January. After a thorough discussion the Report was 

approved as amended unanimously.  

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

14 

Conclusion 
 

The Mayor, Council and staff of the City of Navasota worked through a governance and 

planning process that allowed the Council to create a governance model and identify and 

expand strategies for moving the city forward. The process brought the staff leadership 

and Council closer together as a team and developed an implementation process to ensure 

the strategies are addressed and accomplished over time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

15 

 
 

 

 

Strategic Plan 

2021 
 

 

 

 

Council/Staff Planning Retreat  

February 12, 2021 

 

 

Adopted 

April 26, 2021 

 
 

Prepared and Facilitated 

By 

Ron Cox Consulting 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

16 

Vision Statement 
(Adopted 2017) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Navasota 2027: What America wants to Be: 

A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service oriented, 

close-kinit community filled with historic charm 

and promise for people and business. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

17 

Key Vision Elements 

2021 

 

 
• Navasota is a role model for other cities. 

 

• Clean. 

 

• Safe. 

 

• Friendly and inviting. 

 

• Historic. 

 

• Beautiful and manicured. 

 

• Successful. 

 

• Sustainable. 

 

• Full of opportunity. 

 

• Innovative. 

 

• Charming. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

18 

Mission Statement 
(Adopted 2017) 

 

 

 

To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that 

maintains our heritage, culture and uniqueness 

while maximizing our economic and social 

development. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

19 

 

Mission Elements 
 

 

 

 

• Committed. 

 

• Stay focused on the mission. 

 

• Dedication and desire. 

 

• Proper planning. 

 

• To communicate the Vision. 

 

• Provide great/exceptional customer service. 

 

• Clear, consistent, defined responsibilities. 

 

• Flexible. 

 

• Understanding of your role and responsibilities. 

 

 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

20 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council 

Leadership Philosophy 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota will lead by… 

• Providing the facts. 

• Seeking and gaining understanding of the problems. 

• Listening, asking, seeking information and deciding. 

• Coming together for the greater good – compromising 

and building consensus. 

• Toward a common goal – betterment of 

Navasota. 

• Finding a win/win for all. 

• Building consensus. 

• Picking your wins carefully. 

• Not being afraid to admit you are wrong and changing 

your mind. 

• Being patient. 

• Being humble – not prideful or egotistical. 

• Being passionate about our city, but not dictatorial. 

• Being brave for our city. 

• Showing respect and being respectful of others. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

21 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council 

Communication Philosophy 

The City Council of the City of Navasota will 

communicate by… 

• Effectively with citizens, each other and staff… 

• Concisely. 

• Clearly. 

• Completely. 

• Seek and allow responses. 

• Seek to understand. 

• Take the time to explain the issue and resolution to 

each other and to citizens. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

22 

  

City of Navasota 

City Council and Staff 

Expectations 

 

Council expects the following of each other… 

• Remember we all work for the citizens – Council and 

staff alike. 

• Set the table for the citizens on agenda items – fill in 

the gaps of knowledge for them. 

• Follow the process. 

• Be willing to slow the process down. 

• Respect each other and their opinions. 

• Be honest. 

• Be consistent. 

• Do your homework. 

• Be vulnerable – admit you do not know everything.  

• Be willing to learn. 

• Don’t take the issue personally 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

23 

City of Navasota 

City Council and Staff 

Expectations 

Council expects the following of staff… 
• Set the table to explain agenda items for Council and citizens. 

• Be clear and timely in the information flow to Council – 

understanding and responding to individual council members in the 

way that communicates best to them. 

• Don’t take it personally. 

• Provide the full picture – the good, the bad, and the ugly. 

• Have patience. 

• Know your lane and stay in it. 

• Understand the chain-of-command. 
 

(It was noted that the City Council and staff should all have and respond to the same 

expectations.) 

 

Staff expects Council to (as defined by Council 

members themselves) … 
• Don’t play the “gotcha” game with staff. 

• Have an understanding of staff, their role. 

• Ask questions and don’t assume. 

• Have patience. 

• Be fair. 

• Listen to staff. 

• Be respectful to staff. 

• Seek information on what council can do to help the staff succeed. 

• Seriously consider their recommendations. 

• Attempt to solve the problems that are presented. 

• Give them clear direction. 

• Remember that staff is working for the citizens, as well as the 

Council. 

• Don’t put undue pressure on staff. 

• Follow the chain-of-command. 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

24 

City of Navasota  

 

Strategic 

 

Areas of Emphasis 
 

 

• Governance 
o Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota follows established 

rules of governance that promote civil discourse, consistent and 

predictable deliberation and exemplary action. 

 

• Economic Development 
o Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will promote a strong 

and diverse economy that strengthens the local sales tax and 

property tax base while also contributing to a high quality of 

life. 

 

• Image/Communication 
o Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will proactively work 

to provide accurate, timely communications to the citizens and 

improve the image of the community. 

 

• Infrastructure 
o Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will provide excellent 

infrastructure and facilities that meets the needs of the 

citizens and businesses, and staff. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

25 

Area of Emphasis 
 

Governance 

 
Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota follows established rules of 

governance that promote civil discourse, consistent and predictable 

deliberation and exemplary action. 

 

Initiatives: 

 

• Establish a program to encourage more participation in 

Navasota government. 

o Establish and implement leadership academies. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ academy. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ police academy. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ fire academy. 

o Improve communication and strategic alignment 

between Council and all committees. 

 

• Establish an employee retention strategy. 

o Identify and promote the work culture, benefits of the 

city. 

o Promote the community and organizational culture. 

o Explore housing incentives to live and work in 

Navasota and attract new employees. 

o Cast a wider net for employees. 

o Explore opportunities for providing employee benefits 

that incentivize employment and retention. 

 

• Explore opportunity for a full-time grant writer. 

 

• Provide a clear sense of direction to all boards related to 

economic development. 

o Establish an Economic Development Strategy with the NEDC 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

26 

Area of Emphasis 

 

Economic Development 
 

Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will promote a strong and diverse 

economy that strengthens the local sales tax and property tax base while 

also contributing to a high quality of life. 

 

 

Initiatives 

 
 

• Establish a partnership with NISD, Blinn, TAMU and other 

institutions to enhance the economic development process. 

 

• Seek out grant opportunities. 

 

o Grants from EDA. 

 

• Enhance the marketing of Navasota 

o Marketing to fulfill housing needs. 

o Marketing of lower utility costs compared to other areas. 

o Marketing location and proximity to major metro areas in the 

state. 

 

• Seek partners to improve local health and social service providers. 

o Explore health authority with county. 

o Explore partnership with St. Joseph’s healthcare system. 

o Recruit health provider specialists (optometrists and medical 

providers) 

 

• Enhance strategic retail recruitment 

o Continue to partner with Retail Coach. 

o Attend recruitment conferences (industry, retail, restaurants, 

etc.) 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

27 

 

Area of Emphasis 
 

Image/Communications 

 
Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will proactively work to provide 

accurate, timely communications to the citizens and improve the image of 

the community. 

 

 

Initiatives 

 
• Improve the perception and image of Navasota. 

o Establish a positive campaign to promote Navasota. 

▪ Prepare both an in-person and digital message. 

o Identify target audiences. 

▪ Attend realtor conferences to tell the Navasota story. 

▪ Utilize citizens’ academies (see Governance). 

▪ Explore use of Town Hall meetings – in-person and 

virtual. 

 

• Establish a program to educate ISD students about local 

government. 

o Sponsor a job shadowing program for students in the city. 

 

• Improve communication in general with the public (Note: moved 

from Governance) 

o Be deliberate about creating buy-in from citizens.  

▪ Inform, educate and cast the vision 

o Prepare and implement a communication protocol. 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

28 

 

Area of Emphasis 
 

Infrastructure 

 
Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will provide excellent 

infrastructure and facilities that meets the needs of the citizens and 

businesses, and staff. 

 

 

Initiatives 

 
• Prepare a plan for construction of an elevated grade crossing over 

the railroad tracks. 

o Identify location and right of way needs for the crossing. 

o Establish costs to city to accommodate the crossing. 

o Identify land for a substation for fire and animal control. 

o Establish contact and conversation with the railroad 

 

• Prepare a capital improvements plan and program for needed 

city infrastructure. 

o Improve aging infrastructure. 

o Improve aging and inadequate facilities. 

o Expand parks, trails and bike paths. 

o Identify funding sources – bonds, grants, etc. 

 

• Create additional opportunity for social and family amenities. 

o Create additional sports facilities. 

o Make park improvements – trails, bike paths, etc. 

 

• Identify and plan for needed improvements to the community’s 

internet system. 
o Identify and review the existing systems available to the City 

▪ BVCOG Fiber Loop 

▪ Midsouth Synergies 

▪ Other 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

29 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

1 

 

 
 

 

 



Vision Element #1 

Governance 

 
Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota follows established rules of governance that promote civil discourse, consistent and predictable deliberation and exemplary action. 

 

Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

1.1 Establish a 

program to 

encourage 

more 

participation in 

Navasota 

government. 

1.1.1 Establish and implement leadership 

academies. 

 

• Re-implement a citizens’ academy. 

• Establish a citizens’ police academy. 

• Establish a citizens’ fire academy 

 

 X 

X 

X 

  

Brad 

Stafford 

 

 

 

 

 

• Hold town hall meetings with citizens in 

neighborhoods and restaurants to discuss City 

operations and governance. 

• Present organizational environment to the community 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

X 

 

• Grilling Stafford 

• Monday of City Council meetings: partner with Willy 

98.7 and Navasota Examiner to go over upcoming City 

Council Agenda. (also Facebook Live) 

 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

 

  

 

1.1.2 Provide a clear sense of director to 

all boards 
• Organize a volunteer luncheon for Boards & 

Commissions volunteers 

• Joint meeting with all boards/commissions for 

direction/legal training and Roberts rules. 

• Bring strategic planning and comprehensive planning 

documents to NEDC for approval 

• Recruit members who align with City Council 

• Improve communication and strategic alignment 

between Council and all committees. 

• Inform all communication & comp plan updates to all 

boards 

• Staff to facilitate strategic plan for economic 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

  



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

development corporation 

 

 

 

X 

  1.1.3 Establish a volunteer appreciation 

program   
• Organize a short ceremony for volunteers around the 

city (ex: Blue Santa, Trash Off) 

•  

 

X   Rayna  

1.2 Explore 

opportunity for 

a full-time 

grant writer. 

 

1.2.1 Continued professional development   

• Explore grant writing training opportunities 

• Continue partnership with BVCOG 

• Research other cities how grants are handled 

 

  

X 

X 

X 

  

 

Rayna 

Willenbrink  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vision Element # 2 



Economic Development 
 

Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will promote a strong and diverse economy that strengthens the local sales tax and property tax base while also contributing to a high 

quality of life. 

 

Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

2.1 Establish a 

partnership 

with NISD, 

Blinn, TAMU 

and other 

institutions to 

enhance the 

economic 

development 

process. 

 

2.1.1 Pursue grants from EDA. 

 
• Continue partnership with BVCOG for information 

on EDA grants 

• Continue relationship with Grantworks 

• Continue TEDC membership for resources on EDA 

grants 

• Explore new partnerships 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

  

 

Rayna 

2.1.2 Develop workforce programs • Explore partnerships with NISD 

• Continue partnership Chamber & CETA 

• Explore opportunities with the SBDC 

• Continue partnership with Bush School/TAMU 

• Reach out to BVCOG for funding opportunities 

• Research Texas Workforce Commission 

opportunities 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

 

X 

 

2.2 Enhance the 

marketing of 

Navasota. 

 

2.2.1 Marketing to fulfill housing needs. 

 
• Show housing growth to demonstrate demand. 

• Establish a permit/fee waiver program 

• Utilize NEDC website to highlight utility costs and 

location 

• Navasota Economic Development corporation 

Featured on the Navasota.gov home page 

  

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

X 

  

 

Madison 2.2.2 Marketing of lower utility costs 

compared to other areas. 

 

2.2.3 Marketing location and proximity to 

major metro areas in the state. 

 

2.3 Seek partners 

to improve 

local health 

and social 

2.3.1 Explore health authority with county. 

 
• Improve relationship with county and cities within 

the county 

• Continue to meet with the county this past year about 

this partnership but their level of interest currently 

 

 

X 

 

 X  

 

Rayna 



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

service 

providers. 

 

not very high.  

• Continue to explore other avenues to recruit and 

establish a local public health authority and possibly 

a heath inspections office. 

• Possible partnering with other cities in the county 

 

 

X 

 

 

X 

2.3.2 Establish Health Inspector  • Establish Policy  

• Appoint and train inspector 

  X 

X 

2.3.3 Explore partnership with St. Joseph’s 

healthcare system. 

 

• Add health care recruitment to the regional (retail) 

recruitment project 

  X 

2.3.4 Recruit health provider specialists 

(optometrists and medical providers) 

 

2.4 Enhance 

strategic retail 

recruitment. 

 

2.4.1 Continue to partner with Retail Coach. 

 
• Conduct community surveys to see what citizens 

wish lists are 

• Regional retail recruitment project 

 

 

Ongoing 

X   

 

Rayna 2.4.2 Attend recruitment conferences 

(industry, retail, restaurants, etc.) 

 

  2.4.3 Downtown Assessment • Reach out to Texas Downtown Association for a 

downtown assessment 

• Explore marketing strategies 

• Partnership with SBDC 

X 

 

X 

X 

   

 

 

 

Vision Element # 3 



Image/Communication 
 

Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will proactively work to provide accurate, timely communications to the citizens and improve the image of the community. 

 

Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

3.1 Improve the 

perception and 

image of 

Navasota. 

 

3.1.1 Establish a positive campaign to promote 

Navasota. 

 

• Prepare both an in-person and digital message. 

• Positive short videos about ongoing projects 

• Create a new branding campaign 

• Expand partnership with NISD 

 X 

X 

X 

X 

  

 

Madison 

3.1.2 Identify target audiences to effectively 

recruit new citizens while improving 

community pride. 

 

• Attend realtor conferences to tell the Navasota story. 

• Utilize citizens’ academies (see Governance). 

• Explore use of Town Hall meetings – in-person and 

virtual. 

• Utilize all methods of communication with the public; 

i.e. Grilling Stafford, trails town hall meetings, agenda 

briefings with local media, Navigate Navasota app 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

X 

X 

X 

 

3.2 Establish a 

program to 

educate ISD 

students about 

local 

government. 

 

3.2.1 Re-establish an internship/sponsor a job 

shadowing program for students in the 

city. 

 

• Co-op student to assist with administrative services for 

all departments with 15-20 hours beginning with a 

minimum wage of $7.25. 

• Speak with the co-op class  

• Both high school and college  

 X 

 

 

X 

X 

  

 

Peggy  

& Shawn 

3.3 Improve 

communication 

in general with 

the public. 

3.3.1 Be deliberate about creating buy-in from 

citizens. 
• Inform, educate and cast the vision. 

• Advertise City Council meetings in the paper 

($1,872/year), on the radio, yard signs, banners 

 

X 

X 

   

 

Madison 

3.3.2 Prepare and implement a communication 

protocol. 

• Explore new advertising techniques, i.e. Navigate Navasota 

app, CTY advertisement, Facebook events for all meetings 

•  Explore communication methods for Boards & 

Commissions, i.e. post all agendas on Facebook event 

 X 

 

 

X 

 



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

• All boards give regular updates at City Council meetings 

 
X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vision Element # 4 

Infrastructure 
 

Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will provide excellent infrastructure and facilities that meets the needs of the citizens and businesses, and staff. 



 

Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

4.1 Prepare a 

plan for 

construction 

of an elevated 

grade crossing 

over the 

railroad 

tracks. 

 

4.1.1 Identify location and right of way needs for the 

crossing. 

 

• Thorough fare plan completion 

and implementation 

 

 X   

 

Jose 

& 

Lupe 
4.1.2 Establish costs to city to accommodate the crossing. 

 
• Compile land acquisition costs per thorough 

fare plan design 

• Obtain estimate cost proposals for  

engineering and construction 

 

  X 

 

X 

4.2 

 

Prepare a 

capital 

improvements 

plan and 

program for 

needed city 

infrastructure. 

 

4.2.1 Improve aging infrastructure. 

 

 

Phase one: FY22 

Phase two: FY24 

 

• CIP Bring in a consultant to help formalize the 

plan 

o Update water modeling  

o Consultant to model Gas system and 

Wastewater system 

o Present CIP to Finance Dept. to plan 

for funding options. 

o Streets and Storm water evaluations 

and priorities  

o Replace/repair gas regulator stations 

• Complete phase 1 of CIP 

• Begin phase 2 of CIP 

• Fire hydrant repair/replacement 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

X 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

Jeff 

&  

Jose  

4.2.2 Improve aging and inadequate facilities. 

 
• Create a facilities master plan 

o Hire Consultant  

• Replace or improve animal shelter and vehicle 

services 

• Sell existing warehouse and build a new one 

• Replace the current primary fire station and 

EOC at the South LaSalle location.  

• Explore the possibility of a second fire 

station/public safety facility at Hwy 

  X 

 

X 

 

X 

X 

 

X 

 

 



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

105/Fairway Dr. because of the continued 

growth and expansion of the city and the 

delayed responses due to train traffic 

• Valve and other mechanical equipment 

replacement at wastewater plant 

• Look at alternative disinfectant treatment 

methods 

 

 

 

X 

 

X 

4.2.4 Identify funding sources – bonds, grants, etc. • We currently are working with 2020 Capital 

Improvement Bond.   

• We are working towards doing a bond every 2 

years for CIP 

• USDA loan 

• Add gas capital improvement fee to monthly 

billing. 

• Funding from American Rescue Plan  

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

X 

 

X 

  

4.3 Create 

additional 

opportunity 

for social and 

family 

amenities. 

 

4.3.1 Create additional sports facilities. 

 

• Identify most desired facilities 

• Identify possible locations 

• Land acquisition 

• Identify funding mechanism 

• Design facilities  

• Obtain bids/pricing on new facilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

 X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

 

 

Colton 

4.3.3 Make park improvements – trails, bike paths, etc. 

 

• Adjust city ordinance on parkland dedication 

to allow developers to contribute directly to 

ongoing projects 

• Develop community programs that improve 

parks 

• Identify areas of greatest need 

• Obtain bids/pricing on improvements 



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

• Navasota Sidewalk and Trails plan. 

4.4 Identify and 

plan for 

needed 

improvements 

to the 

community’s 

internet 

system. 

 

4.4.1 Identify and review the existing systems available and 

options to the City 

 

• Facilitate BVCOG partnerships with local ISP 

suppliers to improve speeds in underserved 

areas. 

• Encourage/ Incentivize Midsouth Synergy 

expansion into town via City ROW/Easements 

• Research other ISP options available. 

  X 

 

 

X 

 

X 

 

 

Lupe 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vision Element # 5 

Organizational Excellence 
 

Guiding Principle:  *Ron will update 



 

5.1 Establish an 

employee 

retention 

strategy. 

 

5.1.1 Identify and promote the work culture, 

benefits of the city. 

 

• Promote teamwork aspect of our culture, there are no 

islands everyone works together in some form or 

fashion. 

Hiring Process: 

• Streamline our online HR system 

o Job search & application process  

o Dependable Human Resource Information 

System software 

 

• Update both Incode and Internet system  
          

• Use of Social media to find candidates (i.e. Linkedin, 

Indeed) 
 

• Job boards at colleges and career fairs 

• Create a Referral Program with employee incentives  
 

• Create city parameter for job searches  
 

• Continued use of onboard process 

• Create formal policy hiring practices 

 

Offer competitive salary and benefits: 

• Contact other Cities (population of 5-10K) and 

surrounding industries/business (Trinity, etc.) to make 

sure City is within similar pay range  

• Find strong benefit package (medical, dental, vision, 

life)   

Other Incentives: 

• Continue to make employee feel valued and 

appreciated 
▪  

Ongoing 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

 

 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Peggy 

Johnson 

 

Strategic Initiatives  Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Leader 



• Continue to offer career advancement opportunity 

(invest in employee-greater future with City) 

• Pay for course for training (all departments) 
 

• College tuition reimbursement 
 

• Safety bonuses (no accidents, etc.) Safety pins 

(providing a day off), Bonus day- annually 
 

• Hazardous duty pays (ex: working big storms, etc.) 
▪  

• Team outings/lunches (Spring/Fall) and Christmas 

Party- employee does not have to organize or work the 

event 

• Monetary (bonuses and raises) 

• Continue to Recognize: years of service with Plaque 

and bag of goodies.  At the end of the year employee 

shall receive gift card (money, dinner, coffee, spa) (5 

year increments) 
o  

• Hand written note (“thank you” “job well done”, etc.) 
o  

• Brag board: located front lobby with employee picture 

and award (ex: Rookie of the year, Employee of the 

month, etc.) 

• Discount on rental facilities for city employees  

• City owned workout facility to promote health  

• Utility incentives to promote employees to live in 

Navasota  

• Reconsider 20-year retirement package/insurance to 

the age of social security  

• Evaluate additional employees to complete project 

assignments  

• Evaluate incentives for succession planning in career 

development  

 
 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

X 

X 

 

X 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

X 

 

 

 



 

5.1.2 Promote the community and 

organizational environment  

 

• Video montage of all city events and city participation 

of employees 

• Clear and transparent communication 

• Create Cultural Diversity Awareness by reaching out 

to different segments of the City  

• Career Fair days 

Ongoing 

 

X 

X 

 

X 

 

  

5.1.3 Explore housing incentives to live and 

work in Navasota and attract new 

employees. 

 

• Partner with local realtors or Chamber to put together 

informational housing options package 
▪  

• Pay a portion of moving expenses into Navasota within 

the city limits 

 

X 

 

 

X 

  

  



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 4. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Staff Report:

(a) Airport update;

(b) Introduction of Artist in Residency;

(c) Vote for Washington Ave. campaign;

(d) City Manager message

(e) Proclamation - Municipal Court Week;

(f) Board and Commission update; and

(g) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of
community interests, including expressions of thanks,
congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday
schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming
events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding
social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored
by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City
officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent
threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that
has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

Brad Stafford, City Manager



 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Proclamation

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634750453x_at.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proclamation 
The City of Navasota, Texas 

 
“MUNICIPAL COURT WEEK” 

 
WHEREAS, municipal courts play a significant role in preserving public safety and promoting 

quality of life in Texas; and 

WHEREAS, more people come in contact with municipal courts than all other Texas courts 

combined and public impression of the Texas judicial system is largely dependent upon the 

public’s experience in municipal court; and 

WHEREAS, state law authorizes a municipality to either appoint or elect a municipal judge for 

a term of office, the Navasota Municipal Court is a state court and its judges are members of 

the state judiciary; and 

WHEREAS, the procedures for the Navasota Municipal Court operations are set forth in the 

Texas Code of Criminal Procedure and other laws of the State of Texas; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota is committed to the notion that our legal system is based on 

the principle that an independent, fair, and competent judiciary will interpret and apply the laws 

that govern us and that judges and court personnel should comply with the law and act in a 

manner that promotes public confidence in the integrity and impartiality of the judiciary; and 

WHEREAS, Navasota Municipal Judges are not policy makers for the City of  Navasota but are 

bound by the law and the Canons of Judicial Conduct and are required to make decisions 

independent of the governing body of the City Council, city officials, and employees; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas 

contain procedural safeguards in criminal cases for all defendants, including indigent 

defendants, and supports the Navasota Municipal Court in complying with such legal 

requirements.  

NOW THEREFORE, I Bert Miller, Mayor of the City of Navasota, do hereby recognize 
November 1st  – 5th, 2021 as “MUNICIPAL COURT WEEK”, in recognition of the fair 
and impartial justice offered to our citizens by the Municipal Court of Navasota. 
 
 
DATED THIS THE 25TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2021 
 
                                                         

_________________________  
     BERT MILLER, MAYOR  



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Presentation to the City Manager.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City Council will make a special presentation to the retiring
City Manager.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving
public comments and testimony regarding a voluntary annexation
request submitted by James C. Hassell for a 31.79 acre tract of
land and a 31.76 acre tract of land in the James J. Whitesides
Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City received a petition for annexation from James C. Hassell
requesting voluntary annexation that consists of a 31.79 acre
tract of land and a 31.76 acre tract of land in the James J.
Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. The
area proposed for annexation is located on and along the western
City limits line adjacent to Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 3.

On October 11, 2021 Resolution No. 702-21 ,was passed setting a
date, time and place for a public hearing as well as approving the
attached service plan agreement.

Public hearing opened at ______p.m.

Public hearing closed at ______p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director



Staff recommends conducting a public hearing for the purpose of
receiving public comments and testimony regarding a voluntary
annexation request submitted by James C. Hassell for a 31.79
acre tract of land and a 31.76 acre tract of land in the James J.
Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.

 

ATTACHMENTS:



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of
Ordinance No. 980-21, approving a voluntary annexation request
submitted by James C. Hassell for a 31.79 acre tract of land and a
31.76 acre tract of land in the James J. Whitesides Survey, A-62,
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City received a petition for annexation from James C. Hassell
requesting voluntary annexation that consists of a 31.79 acre
tract of land and a 31.76 acre tract of land in the James J.
Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. The
area proposed for annexation is located on and along the western
City limits line adjacent to Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 3.

On October 11, 2021 Resolution No. ,was passed setting a date,
time and place for a public hearing as well as approving the
attached service plan agreement.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
None
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the first reading of Ordinance No.
980-21, approving a voluntary annexation of a 31.79 acre tract of
land and a 31.76 acre tract of land in the James J. Whitesides
Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.

Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director



 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 980-21

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634759217x_at.pdf


 

 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 980-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF EXTENDING THE BOUNDARY LIMITS OF 
THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR THE 
ANNEXATION OF APPROXIMATELY 63.55 ACRES OF LAND, 
HEREINAFTER MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED, TO THE 
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS FOR ALL MUNICIPAL 
PURPOSES; FINDING THAT ALL NECESSARY AND 
REQUIRED LEGAL CONDITIONS HAVE BEEN SATISFIED; 
PROVIDING THAT SUCH AREA SHALL BECOME A PART OF 
THE CITY AND THAT THE INHABITANTS THEREOF, IF ANY, 
SHALL BE ENTITLED TO THE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF 
OTHER CITIZENS AND BE BOUND BY THE ACTS AND 
ORDINANCES NOW IN EFFECT AND TO BE HEREINAFTER 
ADOPTED; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas is a Texas home-rule municipality 

as defined by the Texas Local Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Charter and Chapter 43 of the Texas Local 

Government Code, authorize the City of Navasota to annex territory in 

accordance with the procedures provided for therein; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota received a written request from the 

property owner requesting the annexation of the hereinafter described area; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to annex the area described hereinafter; and  

WHEREAS, the hereinafter described area lies within the extraterritorial 

jurisdiction of the City of Navasota; and 

WHEREAS, the area hereinafter described lies adjacent and contiguous 

to the present boundary limits of the City of Navasota; and 



 

 2 

WHEREAS, notice of the appropriate public hearing was published in a 

newspaper having general circulation in the City of Navasota, Texas and on the 

City’s website and the public hearing was conducted and held in accordance with 

applicable law; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas and the property owner 

negotiated and executed a Service Plan Agreement for the extension of municipal 

services into the area to be annexed; and 

WHEREAS, all notices, publication and hearings have been duly given 

and held as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, institution of annexation proceedings occurred within the 

period of time as prescribed by law;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the hereinafter described area of land is within the 

extraterritorial jurisdiction of, and is adjacent to and is contiguous to the present 

corporate limits of the City of Navasota, Texas, and the same is hereby, annexed 

to the City of Navasota, Texas for all municipal purposes and the corporate lines 

and limits of the City of Navasota, Texas are hereby extended to embrace the 

said area of land, which is described as follows: 

All that certain 31.76 acre tract and a 31.79 acre tract of land in the James J. 

Whitesides Survey, A-62, Grimes County, Texas, being more particularly 



 

 3 

described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.  

Section 2. That the inhabitants, if any, of the property hereby annexed 

to the City of Navasota, Texas shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges of 

said citizens of the City of Navasota, Texas, and shall be bound by the acts, 

ordinances, codes, resolutions and regulations of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

Section 3. That the Service Plan Agreement which is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “B” is hereby incorporated herein as part of this Ordinance for all 

purposes. 

Section 4. That the official map and boundaries of the City of Navasota, 

Texas, heretofore adopted and amended be and is hereby amended so as to 

include the aforementioned area as part of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

Section 5. That the City Secretary is hereby directed and authorized to 

perform or cause to be performed all acts necessary to amend the official map of 

the City of Navasota, Texas to add the territory hereby annexed as required by 

law. 

Section 6. That this Ordinance shall become effective after its passage. 

Section 7. That the Mayor is hereby directed and authorized to file a 

certified copy of this Ordinance in the Office of the County Clerk, and to perform 

all other acts necessary to notify the appropriate entities of the City’s annexation 

of territory by this Ordinance. 

Section 8. If any section, subsection, sentence, phrase, word, paragraph 

or provision of this Ordinance be found to be illegal, invalid or unconstitutional or 



 

 4 

if any portion of said property is incapable of being annexed by the City of 

Navasota, Texas, for any reason whatsoever, the adjudication shall not affect 

any other section, subsection, sentence, phrase, word, paragraph or provision of 

this Ordinance or the application of any other section, subsection, sentence, 

phrase, word, paragraph or provision of any other Ordinance of the City. The 

City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and 

applications of this Ordinance and would have annexed the valid property 

without the invalid part, and as to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are 

declared to be severable. 

Section 9. That the meetings at which this Ordinance was considered 

and enacted were open to the public as required by the Texas Open Meetings 

Act, and that notice of the time, place, and subject matter of the meetings was 

given as required by the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 25th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2021. 
 
 
                                                              ________________________ 
                                                                    BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 5 

 
 
PASSED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING THIS THE 8TH DAY OF 
NOVEMBER, 2021. 
 
 
                                                              ________________________ 
                                                                    BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
        
 

















ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 8. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for
the month of September 2021.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Final Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ending 09-30-2021
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the expenditures for the month of
September 2021.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Expenditures for September 2021

Lance Hall, Finance Director

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634820575x_at.pdf


















































































































ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 9. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on a sign ordinance
appeal submitted by Grimes County Crimes Stoppers for the
construction of a free standing sign on the property located at the
Southeast corner of Spur 515 and South LaSalle street, Navasota,
Grimes County, Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Connie Clements, President of Grimes County Crime Stoppers
submitted a sign permit application for the construction of a free
standing sign on the property located at the Southeast corner of
Spur 515 and South LaSalle Street. (NISD Property) Staff
determined per Chapter 3 the proposed sign meets the criteria for
a billboard and off-premise sign, both prohibited. Mrs. Clements
has submitted an appeal to this decision and has provided
examples of how other Cities handle similar requests.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends taking action on a sign ordinance appeal
submitted by Grimes County Crime Stoppers for the construction
of a free standing sign on the property located at the Southeast
corner of Spur 515 and South LaSalle, Navasota, Grimes County,
Texas.

Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director



 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Staff Report
2. Appeal Letter
3. NISD Letter, Site Map, Governor Letter
4. Sign Example
5. City Regulations Comparisons
6. Midland TX Example

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634218894x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634218909x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634736985x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634219005x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634218954x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634218971x_at.pdf


  

City of Navasota  
City Council  
Staff Report 

October 11, 2021 
 
 

 
Summary: 
Connie Clements, President of Grimes County Crime Stoppers submitted a sign permit 
application for the construction of a free-standing sign on the property located at the Southeast 
corner of Spur 515 and South LaSalle Street. (NISD Property)  
 
Per Chapter 3 the proposed sign meets the criteria for a prohibited sign.  A billboard and off-
premise sign, Mrs. Clements has submitted an appeal to this decision and has provided 
examples of how other Cities handle similar requests. 
 
Staff determined the proposed sign to be categorized as a Billboard based on the highlighted 
Subsection (B) below since the affected property is vacant and the proposed sign would 
constitute a principal use.  The proposed sign also meets the definition of an off-premise sign 
since Grimes County Crime Stoppers does have any direct affiliation or use on the property. 
 
Per Chapter 3 Definitions: 
(1)     Billboards. A sign in a fixed location which meets any one or more of the following criteria: 

(A)     It is used, in whole or in part, for the display of off-site commercial messages; 
(B)     It constitutes principal, separate or secondary use, as opposed to an accessory, 
ancillary or appurtenant use, of the parcel on which it is located; 
(C)     An outdoor sign used as advertising for hire or general advertising, i.e., on which 
display space is made available to parties other than the owner of the sign or the 
property on which it is placed; or 
(D)     An off-site outdoor advertising sign on which space is leased or rented. 

(3)     Off-premises signs. A sign displaying advertising that pertains to a business, organization, 
activity, event, place, service or product not principally located or primarily manufactured or 
sold on the premises on which the sign is located. 
 
  
The current adopted sign ordinance does not outline any exceptions for other government 
organizations including the Texas Crime Stoppers Council. 
 
Property Information: 
PID: R31425 
Legal Description: WOODWARD, BLOCK 3 
Owner: NAVASOTA IND SCH DIST 
Address: SPUR 515, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
Zoning: B-1 
Land Use: Vacant 

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/docs/GV/htm/GV.414.htm
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=navasotaset&collection=navasota&doccode=z2Code_z20000820


Aerial & Street view: 

 

 

 











Sign Example – Iola 

The proposed sign on Spur 515 will be adjusted to comply with the Free-standing sign requirements: 

(6)     Freestanding sign. 

(A)     Generally. A sign not attached to a building, permanently erected upon or standing in the 

ground and usually supported from the ground by one or more poles, columns, uprights, braces. 

(B)     Required conditions. 

(i)     Zoning overlay district: Sign area 32 sq. ft. - maximum height 4 ft. 

(ii)     Within 400 feet of Highway 6: Sign area 64 sq. ft. - maximum height 10 ft. 

(iii)     All other areas: Sign area - 32 sq. ft. - max height 6 ft. 

(iv)     Less than 12" clearance between sign and ground. 

(v)     Only 1 sign per business location. (Ordinance 916-20 adopted 3/9/20) 

 

 



COMPARISONS RELATED TO CRIME STOPPERS SIGNS IN CITY LIMITS  Revised 10-6-21

POP

CITY CONTACT PHONE COMMENTS

Brenham Shawna Laauwe 979.337.7200 No restrictions for res; on comm, max 2  4x3-ft signs/5-ft high/8 ft. from curb 17,123

Bastrop Allison Land 512.332.8840 As of 9/24, still waiting for call back. She couldn't answer questions. 8,776

Bryan Megan Hancock 979.209.5030

Don't allow off premise but most BCCS signs are on light fixtures; nothing prohibits

Crime Stoppers signs, per se 84,096

College Station Brandi Tedrick 979.764.3500

While not in writing, they allow BC Crime Stoppers to install/post whatever signage they 

want to. 113,686

Granbury Rob Macumber 682.205.1608 Yes, they're allowed. Must follow setback requirements and not obstruct view. 9,939

Madisonville Don Grooms 936.245.7138 They allow Crime Stoppers signs in city limits on private property with no restrictions. 4,653

Midland

Angie 

Valenzuela, Exec 

Dir, Midland CS Talked to 

Angie

City of Midland works with CS and allows posting of signs at street intersections;

In March 2021, had posted 15 in city and two at high schools. 138,549

Navasota 7,565





ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 10. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the agreement for
Interim City Manager services by and between Bleyl Interests,
Inc. D/B/A Bleyl Engineering and the City of Navasota, Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Legal Counsel and the Mayor have been working on an agreement
with Bleyl Engineering to provide interim City Manager services
for the City beginning in November.  
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of an agreement for Interim City
Manager Services between  Bleyl Interests, Inc. D/B/A Bleyl
Engineering and the City of Navasota, Texas.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Agreement for Interim City Manager Services

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634844232x_at.pdf


 
 

AGREEMENT FOR INTERIM CITY MANAGER SERVICES 
BY AND BETWEEN BLEYL INTERESTS, INC. D/B/A BLEYL ENGINEERING AND 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF GRIMES  § 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into to be effective as of the 1st day of 
November, 2021, by and between the City of Navasota, Texas, a Texas home-rule municipal 
corporation, hereinafter called “CITY” and Bleyl Interests, Inc. d/b/a Bleyl Engineering, of Brazos 
County, Texas, hereinafter called “CONSULTANT.” 
 
 WITNESSETH, that in consideration of the covenants and agreements herein contained, 
the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1 
EMPLOYMENT OF CONSULTANT 

 
 The CITY hereby contracts with the CONSULTANT, as an independent contractor, and 
the CONSULTANT hereby agrees to perform the services herein as stated herein, with diligence 
and in accordance with the highest professional standards customarily obtained for such services 
in the State of Texas. 
 

ARTICLE 2 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
 Brad Stafford, on behalf of and as an employee of the CONSULTANT, shall personally 
perform the following services in a professional manner: 
 
A. Serve as the Interim City Manager, and consultation with City of Navasota Mayor, City 

Council and staff, as requested, regarding City-related matters, including but not limited to 
general City operations; gas, water, and sewer utility system management, operations, 
functions, policies, procedures and similar issues; and other issues as deemed appropriate 
by the Mayor and/or City Council. The Interim City Manager shall be authorized to 
perform the duties and functions specified in Article V of said Charter, the applicable 
ordinances of the City, this Agreement, and as the Council shall, from time to time, assign 
to the Interim City Manager consistent with the intent of this Agreement. 

 
B. CONSULTANT and CITY shall develop a general schedule that is mutually acceptable 

and as is necessary for CONSULTANT to perform the requested services.  The schedule 
may be modified on occasion and may vary from week to week as is agreed upon by both 
parties.  CITY shall make a reasonable effort to limit the total hours of service required for 
any given week to 10 hours or less.   

 



Page  2 

ARTICLE 3 
PERIOD OF SERVICE 

 
 This Agreement shall become effective upon the 1st day of November, 2021 and shall be 
effective until the 30th day of April, 2022 or until terminated by either party pursuant to Article 
10 of this Agreement, whichever comes first (the “Term”). Time is of the essence in this 
Agreement.   
 

ARTICLE 4 
COMPENSATION 

 
A. COMPENSATION, BILLING AND PAYMENT:  For and in consideration of the 

professional services to be performed by the CONSULTANT herein, the CITY agrees to: 
1) Pay to CONSULTANT the sum of $100.00 per hour for Interim City Manager services 
pursuant to this Agreement; 2) Reimburse CONSULTANT for any reasonable expenses 
incurred by CONSULTANT in connection with providing services performed for the City 
at City’s request; 3) Pay automobile mileage (at the current IRS rate) for the use of 
CONSULTANT’s or Brad Stafford’s motor vehicle for City business. CONSULTANT 
will provide a billing statement to the City on a monthly basis.   

 
B. PAYMENT:  If the CITY fails to make payments due the CONSULTANT for services and 

expenses within thirty (30) days after receipt of the CONSULTANT’s undisputed 
statement thereof, the amounts due the CONSULTANT will be increased by the rate 
allowed by Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, and, in addition, the CONSULTANT 
may, after giving seven (7) days’ written notice to the CITY, suspend services under this 
Agreement until the CONSULTANT has been paid in full all amounts due for services, 
expenses, and charges, provided, however, nothing herein shall require the CITY to pay 
the late charge allowed by Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251 if the CITY reasonably 
determines that the work is not in compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 5 

OBSERVATION AND REVIEW OF THE WORK 
 

The CONSULTANT will exercise reasonable care and due diligence in discovering and 
promptly reporting to the Mayor any defects or deficiencies in the work of the CONSULTANT or 
any subcontractors or subconsultants. 
 

ARTICLE 6 
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

 
 All documents prepared or furnished by the CONSULTANT (and CONSULTANT’s 
employee, subcontractors or subconsultants) pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of service, 
and shall be deemed the property of the CITY. The CONSULTANT is entitled to retain copies of 
all such documents. 
 



Page  3 

ARTICLE 7 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 
 CONSULTANT shall provide services to CITY as an independent contractor, not as an 
employee of the CITY.  CONSULTANT shall not have or claim any right arising from employee 
status. 
 

ARTICLE 8 
CONFIDENTIALITY 

 
 The CONSULTANT will perform services for CITY which may require CITY to disclose 
confidential and proprietary information to CONSULTANT or which may require CITY to grant 
authorization to the CONSULTANT to make financial and legal transactions on behalf of the 
CITY. Confidential information includes, but is not limited to, any information of any kind, nature, 
or description concerning any matters affecting or relating to CONSULTANT’s services for CITY, 
the business or operations of CITY, and/or the products, projects, drawings, plans, processes, or 
other data of CITY.  Financial and legal information includes, but is not limited to, financial 
institution wire transfers, deposits, withdrawals, cash handling, investment handling, real property 
transactions, or other financial or legal transactions of CITY. The CONSULTANT agrees:  
 

• To hold any and all confidential information received from CITY in strict confidence and 
shall exercise a reasonable degree of care to prevent disclosure to others.   

• Not to disclose or divulge, either directly or indirectly, the confidential information to 
others unless first authorized to do so in writing by CITY. For financial and legal 
transactions, CONSULTANT must receive authorization from CITY verbally and in 
writing, other than by email, and CONSULTANT shall maintain reasonable data security 
controls to protect CONSULTANT and CITY from social engineering attacks. 

• Not to reproduce the confidential information, nor use this information commercially, or 
for any purpose other than the performance of its duties for CITY. 

• That upon request or upon termination of its relationship with CITY, deliver to CITY, 
any drawings, notes, documents, equipment, and materials received from CITY or 
originating from CONSULTANT’s activities for CITY. 

• That CITY shall have the sole right to determine the treatment of any information that is 
part or project specific received from CONSULTANT, including the right to keep the 
same as confidential and proprietary.  

 
ARTICLE 9 

INDEMNIFICATION; NO LIABILITY  
TO THIRD PARTIES; NO WAIVER OF DEFENSES 

 
 To the extent it may be permitted to do so by applicable law, CITY does hereby agree to 
defend, hold harmless, and indemnify the designated Interim City Manager, CONSULTANT, and 
all officers, employees, and contractors of CONSULTANT, from any and all demands, claims, 
suits, actions, judgments, expenses, and attorneys' fees incurred in any legal proceedings brought 
against them as a result of action taken in the Interim's individual or official capacity for the CITY 



Page  4 

as an independent contractor and as Interim City Manager, providing the incident(s), which is (are) 
the basis of any such demand, claim, suit, actions, judgments, expenses, and attorneys' fees, arose 
or does arise in the future from an act or omission of the Interim City Manager as an independent 
contractor of CITY acting within the course and scope of the Interim City Manager’s  engagement 
with CITY; excluding, however, any such demand, claim, suit, action, judgment, expense, and 
attorneys' fees for those claims or any causes of action where it is determined that the Interim City 
Manager committed official misconduct, or committed a willful or wrongful act or omission, or 
an act or omission constituting gross negligence, or acted outside of the course and scope of the 
Interim City Manager’s authority or engagement with the CITY, or acted in bad faith; and 
excluding any insurance contract, held either by CITY or CONSULTANT.  In the case of such 
indemnified demand, claim, suit, action, or judgment, the selection of the Interim City Manager’s 
legal counsel shall be with the mutual agreement of the Interim City Manager and CITY if such 
legal counsel is not also CITY’s legal counsel. A legal defense may be provided through 
insurance/risk pool coverage, in which case the Interim City Manager’s right to agree to legal 
counsel provided for him will depend on the terms of the applicable insurance/risk pool contract. 
The provisions of this paragraph shall survive the termination, expiration, or other end of this 
Agreement and/or the Interim City Manager’s engagement with CITY.   
 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create a liability to any person who is not 
a party to this Agreement, and nothing herein shall waive any of the parties’ defenses, both at law 
or equity, to any claim, cause of action, or litigation filed by anyone not a party to this Agreement, 
including the defense of governmental immunity, which defenses are hereby expressly reserved. 
 

ARTICLE 10 
TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

 
A. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, both parties acknowledge that this 

Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time, with or without cause, by 
providing written notice of termination to the other party. 

 
B. When this Agreement is terminated by either party or upon the expiration of the Term of 

this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall immediately cease all services and shall render a 
final bill for services to the CITY within thirty (30) days after the date of termination.  The 
CITY shall pay CONSULTANT for all services properly rendered and satisfactorily 
performed and for reimbursable expenses to termination incurred prior to the date of 
termination.  The CONSULTANT shall turn over all documents prepared or furnished by 
CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement to the CITY on or before the date of 
termination, but may maintain copies of such documents for their use. 

 
ARTICLE 11 

NOTICES 
 
 All notices, communications, and reports required or permitted under this Agreement shall 
be personally delivered or mailed to the respective parties by depositing same in the United States 



Page  5 

mail to the address shown below, certified mail, return receipt requested, unless otherwise 
specified herein.  Mailed notices shall be deemed communicated as of three (3) days after mailing: 
 

To CONSULTANT:    To CITY: 
 

Bleyl Engineering    City of Navasota 
100 Nugent St.    Attn: Mayor Bert Miller 
Conroe, TX 77301    P.O. Box 910 
      Navasota, Texas 77868 
 

 All notices shall be deemed effective upon receipt by the party to whom such notice is 
given, or within three (3) days after mailing. 
 

ARTICLE 12 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
 This Agreement constitutes the complete and final expression of the agreement of the 
parties, and is intended as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of their agreements, 
and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous offers, promises, representations, negotiations, 
discussions, communications, and agreements which may have been made in connection with the 
subject matter hereof. 
 

ARTICLE 13 
SEVERABILITY 

 
 If any provision of this Agreement is found or deemed by a court of competent jurisdiction 
to be invalid or unenforceable, it shall be considered severable from the remainder of this 
Agreement and shall not cause the remainder to be invalid or unenforceable.  In such event, the 
parties shall reform this Agreement to replace such stricken provision with a valid and enforceable 
provision which comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision. 
 

ARTICLE 14 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

 
 The CONSULTANT shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, 
and ordinances applicable to the work covered hereunder as they may now read or hereinafter be 
amended. 

 
ARTICLE 15 
PERSONNEL 

 
All services required hereunder will be performed personally by Brad Stafford, on behalf 

of and as an employee of the CONSULTANT.  
 
 



Page  6 

ARTICLE 16 
ASSIGNABILITY 

 
 The CONSULTANT shall not assign any interest in this Agreement, and shall not transfer 
any interest in this Agreement (whether by assignment, novation, or otherwise) without the prior 
written consent of the CITY. 
 

ARTICLE 17 
MODIFICATION 

 
 No waiver or modification of this Agreement or of any covenant, condition, or limitation 
herein contained shall be valid unless in writing and duly executed by the party to be charged 
therewith, and no evidence of any waiver or modification shall be offered or received in evidence 
in any proceeding arising between the parties hereto out of or affecting this Agreement, or the 
rights or obligations of the parties hereunder, and unless such waiver or modification is in writing 
and duly executed; and the parties further agree that the provisions of this section will not be 
waived unless as set forth herein. 
 

ARTICLE 18 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
A. Venue of any suit or cause of action under this Agreement shall lie exclusively in Grimes 

County, Texas.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Texas, without regard to any conflicts of law provisions. 

 
B. CONSULTANT shall commence, carry on, and complete any and all projects with all 

applicable dispatch, in a sound, economical, and efficient manner and in accordance with 
the provisions hereof.  In accomplishing the projects, CONSULTANT shall take such steps 
as are appropriate to ensure that the work involved is properly coordinated with related 
work being carried on by the CITY. 

 
C. The CITY shall assist the CONSULTANT by placing at the CONSULTANT’s disposal all 

reasonably available information pertinent to a project, including previous reports, any 
other data relative to the project, and arranging for the access thereto, and make all 
reasonable provisions for the CONSULTANT to enter in or upon public and private 
property as required for the CONSULTANT to perform services under this Agreement. 

 
D. The captions of this Agreement are for informational purposes only, and shall not in any 

way affect the substantive terms or conditions of this Agreement. 
 

 
 
 





ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 11. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on lease agreement
between the City of Navasota and Boy Scout Troop 361.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Several months ago, the Boy Scouts approached the city about
leasing the old pro shop at August Horst Park for use as a Scout
Hut.  The building needs a considerable amount of work, and the
scouts asked if they could perform the work in lieu of some rental
fees.  

The total cost for the work is estimated at $42,277.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
Proposal - Scouts provide $42,277 worth of improvements

Lease agreement for 5 years at $700 per month would be very
close to the cost of improvements., therefore a 5 year agreement
at no cost other than the improvements.
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of a lease agreement with the Boy
Scout Troop 361.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Agreement with Boy Scout Troop 361
2. Boy Scout Troop 361 Info

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634748440x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634748459x_at.pdf


































ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 12. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on amendment to the
firm transportation and storage agreement with Atmos Pipeline-
Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Changes:

2.4 Designates Atmos Storage Facilities instead of Atmos' Primary
and Secondary Storage Facilities

2.5 Changes Exhibit C to Exhibit B

2.6 Changes Exhibit D and E to Exhibit B
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
Total Storage Capacity=36,413 MMbtu

Maximum Storage Injection= 311 MMbtu

Maximum Storage Withdrawal= 1,289 MMbtu
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the amendment of
firm transportation and storage agreement with Atmos Pipeline-
Texas.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Lance Hall, Finance Director



1. previous agreement
2. Amendment to Transportation Agreement

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634762707x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634757559x_at.pdf


































ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 13. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on appointments to
boards and commissions.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Annually a portion of appointees terms on the boards and
commissions expire. Emails were sent to current members whose
term is ending, and announcements have been made in the on
Facebook and social media requesting applications from anyone
interested in serving on a board or commission. Attached you will
find the 2021-2022 applicants as well as the boards and
commissions ballot for making appointments. 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends appointing members to boards and
commissions. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Boards & Commissions Ballot
2. Board Applications

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634914884x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634909970x_at.pdf


2021-2022 BOARDS & COMMISSIONS APPLICANTS 

 

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

 Select 4 Members  

1. Bert Miller 

2.   Kathy Prescott 

2. Brittany Bay - DNR 

3. Kevin Clark 

4. Dillon Hughes 

5. Ethan Barcak 

 

 

AIRPORT ADVISORY 

Select 5 Members 

1. Scott Beddingfield 

2. Erin Wilhite - NR 

3. Mac Vaughn 

4. Roger D. Lawrence 

5. Todd Matthews 

6. Brad Nichols 

7.   Steve Discher 

PARKS & RECREATION 

Select 1 Members 

1. Ethan Barcak 

PLANNING & ZONING 

Select 4 Members 

1. James Harris  

2. Todd Wisner 

3. Randy Peters 

4. Patty Tokoly 

5. Megan Barcak 

6. Debbie Hancock 

7.   Mac Vaughn 

 

KEEP NAVASOTA BEAUTIFUL 

Select 8 Members 

1. Vanikin Leggett  

2. Brittany Bay  

3. Clarence Lewis, Jr. - NR 

4. Layla Perez - NR 

5. Brenda Mays - DNR 

6. Elizabeth Corpus  

7. Phyllis Robinson - NR 

8. 1 vacancy 

9.    Naomi Wallace 

10.  Katrina Mock-Palmer 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Select 4 Full Time Members 

& 2 Alternates 

1. James Hammie 

2. Baker Goodwin - DNR 

3. Taylor Perry 

4.    Judy Duncan  

5.    Connie Clements 

6.    Megan Barcak 

7.    Mac Vaughn 
 

NAVASOTA HOUSING AUTHORITY 

Select 3 Members 

1. Chyna Walker - NR 

2. Myra Dickson 

3.    Diana Westmoreland 

4.    Katrina Mock-Palmer 

LIBRARY ADVISORY 

Select 3 Members 

1. Martha Green 

2. Shannon Goetz 

3. Brent Cahill 

 

 

Currently serving 

Recommended 

Would be a good candidate 

New Application 

NR – No Response 

DNR – Does not want to be 

reappointed 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 































































































ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 14. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on selecting proposal to
contract event planning services for the 2022 Texas Birthday
Bash.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
With the Marketing and Communications Coordinator position
vacancy staff has been reviewing options to ensure the 10th
annual Texas Birthday Bash is planned and executed successfully.
As a result of this effort staff determined hiring a professional
event planning company will be the best option for the 2022
event. Staff has received 3 proposals from various agencies
offering event planning services for the 2022 Texas Birthday
Bash. In order of receipt:

Brand It Graphix, a BIG Company
Charlie Diggs Productions & Media Gurus, Inc.
Maxgray Productions, Inc.

 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

Brand It Graphix, a BIG Company
$34,625 and $5.00 from each ticket sale for every ticket
over 20,000 that is sold

Charlie Diggs Productions & Media Gurus, Inc.
$30,000 and 30% from final net profit

Maxgray Productions, Inc.
$75,000 and 40% net profit of all alcohol sales after all
net costs are realized

Brad Stafford, City Manager



 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends selecting a proposal to contract event planning
services for the 2022 Texas Birthday Bash.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Brand It Graphix Proposal
2. Charlie Diggs and Media Gurus Proposal
3. Maxgray Productions Proposal 2022 TBB

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634579311x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634593238x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634747626x_at.pdf


  

  

 

Texas Birthday Bash 

Event Planning 

Proposal 

 

Prepared for 

Navasota City Council 

 

Prepared by 

Brand It Graphix 

 Marketing Department 

cswanson@bigcompany.com 

10/15/2021 

Formatted: Top:  0.94", Bottom:  0.81"



About Us 
 
Brand It Graphix, a BIG Company, provides marketing services that empower 

businesses and municipalities. We are here to aid them in their needs and 

provide tools and expert knowledge that can help them better reach their 

target audience. Our company seeks to provide you with digital and traditional 

marketing services that are tailored to fit your unique needs.  

 
 
 

Scope of Work 
 
We will provide marketing and event coordination services upon approval of 

this proposal through the Texas Birthday Bash, March 4-5, 2022. Additionally, 

we will provide analytics to the City of Navasota 

regarding the effectiveness of marketing campaigns and ticket sales.   

 

 

Objectives & Timeline 

 
The phases, their descriptions, and the target dates for marketing and event 

coordination are as follows: 

*The objectives and timeline outlined below are not inclusive. They reflect the 

material our agency has been privy to.  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Commented [LL1]:   

Commented [LL2R1]:  



Timeline 
 

Phase Description End Date 

Marketing 
Consulting 
Services 

To identify the needs of the client 
and plan specific marketing 
strategies, budgetary requirements, 
and timeline adjustments.  

October 22, 2021 

Digital Marketing 
Services 

Coordinate and organize video 
announcements of TBB and arrange 
disbursement across digital channels. 

November 1, 2021 

Secure 
Sponsorships 

Secure sponsorships for TBB – goal is 
to increase sponsorship over 2021 
TBB 

November 30, 2021 

Vendor Contact & 
Coordination 

Secure Vendors/Payments, Setup, 
Coordinate with Map 

December 1, 2021 – 
March 5, 2022 

Day of Logistics Secure and coordinate equipment 
rental and shuttle transportation 
 

 

Digital/Traditional 
Marketing 
Services 

• Promotion 

Continuation of Marketing Services 
will continue through event via 
Digital, Radio, & Television – increase 
intensity over last year by 25% 
Arrange Announcement Party and 
pre-sale kickoffkick-off coordinating 
with “Sip and Shop” 

December 1, 2021- 
March 5, 2022 
 
December 4, 2021 

Bands Ensure band contracts are secure. 
Lodging is coordinated; Green room 
is arranged; Meet & Greet is 
organized. 

November 1, 2021 – 
February 15, 2022 

Ticket Sales Identify areas of opportunity to 
increase price of ticket sales by 
$10.00 per ticket (Popularity of 
Bands/10 yryr. Anniversary). 
Promote pre-Sale of tickets – perk of 
purchasing early? 
Track ticket sales 
VIP – determine amount, meals & 
perks 

December 15, 2021 – 
March 5, 2022 

Fulfil Sponsorships Ensure sponsorship packages are met December 1, 2021 – 
March 5, 2022 

Formatted Table

Formatted: Double underline



 

Pricing 
 

Description  Quantity Price Total 

Marketing Consulting 
Services 

1.00 $15,000 fee $15,000   

Event Coordination  1.00 $15,000 fee $25,000 

Staff Shirts 1.00 $1,300    fee $1,300      

Fencing, Potties, 
Luxury Potties 

1.00 $25,825 fee $25,825 

BIG Exclusive Title 
Sponsorship 

1.00  -$25,000 

Brand It Graphix Come 
& Take It Sponsorship 

1.00  -$7,500 

Total   $34,625 

 

As partners with the City of Navasota, Brand It Graphix and Brannon Industrial Group will strive to 

make the 10th Anniversary Texas Birthday Bash the largest and most successful event to date. 

Through targeted advertisement, we aim to bring in a larger crowd than last year and garner 

increased awareness for the City of Navasota. 

*In addition to above: as incentive and compensation for our time and efforts, we propose 

that for every ticket over 20,000 that is sold, Brand It Graphix will receive $5.00 from the 

ticket sale.  



Terms & Conditions 
 

 

1. Contract Amount 

 

The client shall pay a down payment of 50% of the total contract price. The 

remaining amount shall be paid upon completion of the contract.  

 

 

2. Contract Period 

 

The contract period shall be through March 5, 2022.  

 

 

3. Request for Modifications 

 

The client may only request a modification of services if the request is made 

in writing and changes requested shall not materially affect the entire 

contract process.  

 

 

4. Transferability 

 

This proposal and the documents related to this transaction shall not be 

transferable or assignable without the prior written consent of the parties. 

 

 

 

5. Confidentiality 

 

Both parties shall treat this document, and all other documents subsequent 

and related to this transaction as confidential. Any information of the client 

that will be shared with the company shall only be used to complete the 

services stipulated in this document. 
 



1

Rayna Willenbrink

From: Brooke Cormier <brooke@mediagurustx.com>
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:18 PM
To: Rayna Willenbrink; Charlie Diggs; Brad Stafford; Lupe Diosdado
Subject: Charlie Diggs Entertainment & Promotions

Hi Rayna!  
 
Thank you for sending all the info over to me this morning!  Charlie and I have discussed everything and based on the 
city turning everything over to us and allowing us to handle the entire event turnkey, we would request $30k up front 
and we would take 30% off of the final net profit.   
 
$30k base up front as salary for event  
30% from final net profit 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  
 
Thanks and hopefully we will be getting to work very soon for you guys!  
 

Brooke Cormier I President 
Mobile: 832.248.6619 
www.mediagurustx.com 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the City of Navasota's organization. DO NOT click links or open attachments unless 
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 



 
                                        Texas Birthday Bash Proposal  
 
 

Event Summary 
Texas Birthday Bash  
March 4-5, 2022  
 
A two-day music festival in Navasota featuring some of the biggest names in Texas music, 
Texas flavors and made-in-Texas vendors.  

 
 
Scope of Work 
 
Maxgray Productions proposes the following services: 
 
PRE-EVENT 
 
Line-up launch and release party  

• Engage videographer to create a line-up video and manage production of video  

• Provide video link to post on social channels and send to sponsors  

• Coordinate logistics for event as necessary  
 
Logistics  

• Collaborate with the City of Navasota to create the event layout and vendor map  

• Secure and coordinate the following vendors for event including contract negotiations 
and execution, ongoing communication and planning and securing payment 

o Merchandise  
o MC 
o Equipment rentals/lifts/fencing 
o Stage/lighting/sound 
o Ole Western Gunfighters (kid zone) 
o Mechanical bull/bounce houses (kid zone) 
o Petting Zoo (kid zone) 
o Ice 
o Guitar vendor 
o Shuttles 



 
• Bus Drivers 

• Event parking  

• Ticketing and website  

• Insurance 

• TxDOT for signage 

• VIP tent and equipment 

• Medical (ambulances) 

• City staff/Volunteers for event assistance 

• Navasota PD  

• Trash and clean-up  

• Obtain permitting necessary for event (street closures, LP gas, etc) 

• Secure and manage vendors  
o Contract negotiation and execution  
o Provide maps and load-in/load-out information  

▪ Activate license for alcohol sales 
▪ MaxGray will provide the management, staffing and coordination of the alcohol sales 

during the event. MaxGray will: 
o Determine number of beverage booths needed for event 
o Staff booths  
o Order alcohol, working with any beverage sponsors  
o Set-up a management systems for reporting all purchases/sales/costs  
o Set-up payment system for credit card processing  
o Provide necessary equipment (coolers, trash cans, cash boxes, credit card 

machines, etc.) 
 
Sponsorship*  

• Support on securing additional sponsorships 

• Manage and communicate sponsorship fulfillment 
o Social media and marketing initiatives 
o Coordinate production and placement of signage  
o Activation at festival (event booth space, custom activations) 
o Passes for VIP, meet and greet, general admission tickets  

• Prepare sponsorship packets with  
o Directions and parking information  
o VIP passes and/or meet and greet passes 
o  General admission tickets  

 



 
 
 
Promotion* 

• Earned media 
o Event posting distribution  
o Outreach to media channels to garner coverage before and during the event 

• Paid media 
o Negotiate media contracts if the budget allows (television, radio, digital) 

• Social  
o Up to 20 Facebook posts (boosted to garner increased engagement) 
o Posts and advertising on Instagram  
o Collaborate with bands on co-marketing opportunities on social  
o Engage influencers to post prior to event (Facebook, Instagram, Snapchat, 

TikTok)  

• Reporting 
o Gather analytics from website traffic, social channel and media partnerships to 

understand reach of advertising and promotion initiatives 
 

 
*Note: these are not typical functions of MaxGray Productions. We have some experience 
supporting these initiatives but will be engaging additional team members to fulfill these areas 
of the contract.  
 
 
EVENT SET-UP 

• Vendor check-in and load-in  

• Coordinate all logistics set-up (tents, tables, electric, ice, etc) 

• Signage installation  

• Manage event set-up and break-down of bars and equipment  
 
 
DURING EVENT 

▪ On-site management and coordination of all logistics during event  
 

 
 



 
Proposed Team 

 
Pre-event: 

• Event Managers (2) 

• Sponsorship support (communication and coordination) 

• Marketing coordinator  

• Communications coordinator  
 
During Event: 

• Site Supervisors (3) 

• Financial/cash manager 

• Vendor Coordinator  

• Hospitality manager  

• Sponsor coordinator  

• Marketing coordinator 

• On-site marketing/public relations lead 

• Security lead  
 
 

Event Fees  
 
MaxGray to receive a fixed fee of $75,000 in compensation for coordination, management and 
coordination to promote the Texas Birthday Bash.  This fee covers all work before and during 
the festival and covers resource costs for the above team.   
 
 

Alcohol Concession Commissions 

 
MaxGray will receive a split of the profit of all alcohol sales after all net costs are realized 
(product, staffing, taxes, etc.). 
 
Max Gray   40% 
Texas Birthday Bash  60% 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 
Texas Birthday Bash               Date 

 
 

Maxgray Representative                                                                             Date 

 
 
 

About Maxgray Productions  
 
Maxgray Productions is a full-service event production company with solid reputation for 
helping our clients produce successful events.   
 
Our past and current clients include: 

▪ Houston Press Menu of Menus 
▪ Houston Press Artopia 
▪ Houston Press Brewfest  
▪ Discovery Green Pet-a-polooza 
▪ Midtown Management Group Art in the Park 
▪ Mistletoe Market 
▪ The Center for Hearing and Speech Via Colori Street Painting Festival 
▪ Houston Dynamo Orange Avenue 
▪ Ellington Airport Aeros and Autos 
▪ Houston Firefighters Association FireFest 
▪ Tomball German Heritage Festival  
▪ Houston International Festival IFest 
▪ Free Press SummerFest 
▪ Celebration Seabrook 
▪ Txfest 
▪ Taco Tequlia, and Margarita Fest 
▪ Pride Houston 
▪ Bikes on the Bayou 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 15. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Executive Session:  The City Council will conduct an
Executive Session in accordance with Section 551.072, Texas
Government Code, deliberation regarding real property and
discussion regarding the potential sale and/or value of City-owned
property.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The time is ____________p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Conduct executive session to discuss the potential sale and value
of city owned property.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Brad Stafford, City Manager



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 16. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Executive Session:  The City Council shall meet in
Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.071, Texas
Government Code - Consultation with Attorney - Dispute
regarding invoice received from Symmetry Energy Solutions, LLC
for natural gas supplied to the City of Navasota for the month of
February 2021, and associated matters.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The time is __________p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 17. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Reconvene in open session.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The time is ________ p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 18. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on approval of the
Competitive Sealed Proposal alternative delivery method,
pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2269, Subchapter
D, as the best-value procurement method for construction of the
Public Works Warehouse facility.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City of Navasota is soliciting Competitive Sealed Proposals
from qualified firms interested in providing construction services
in connection with the provision and construction of a 55' x 112'
pre-engineered metal building for the Public Works Department.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Competitive Sealed Proposal
alternative delivery method, pursuant to Texas Government Code
Chapter 2269, Subchapter D, as the best-value procurement
method for construction of the Public Works Warehouse facility.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Jennifer Reyna



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 19. AGENDA DATE: October 25,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Discuss and possibly act upon dispute regarding invoice
received from Symmetry Energy Solutions, LLC for natural gas
supplied to the City of Navasota for the month of February 2021,
and associated matters.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Brad Stafford, City Manager



CITY OF NAVASOTA
MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

1. PLANNING CALENDAR

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1634908124x_at.pdf


 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 

 
 

OCTOBER 25, 2021 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 10/11/2021 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Airport update; (b) Introduce Artist in Residency; (c) Vote for Washington  
    Ave. Project campaign; (d) City Manager message; (e) Proclamation – Municipal Court Week;  
   (f) Board and Commission update; and (g) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. Presentation to the City Manager 
6. Public hearing – requested annexation 
7. 1st reading of Ordinance No. 980-21, requested annexation 
8. Expenditures for the month of September 2021 
9. Sign appeal – Crime Stoppers 
10.Interim City Manager agreement 
11.Lease agreement with Boy Scout Troop 361 
12.Amendment to firm transportation and storage agreement with Atmos 
13.Board and Commission appointments 
14.Executive Session: Section 551.072, regarding real property and discussing regarding  
    potential sale and/or value of City owned property (Warehouse) 
15.Executive Session:  Section 551.071, regarding February gas bill 
16.Reconvene in open session 
17.Competitive sealed proposal for construction of a warehouse 
18.Action on February gas bill 
19.Adjourn 

 
 

NOVEMBER 8, 2021 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 10/25/2021 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Update on Capital Improvements Project; (b) Library update;  
   (c) Proclamation – Apprentice Week, Nov. 4-21, 2021; (d) Board and Commission  
    update; and (e) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. Public hearing – Conditional Use permite for 508 Peeples Street – place of worship 
6. 1st reading of Ordinance No. _____, conditional use permit for 508 Peeples Street – place of  
    worship  
7. Approval of Amendment # 2 for the thoroughfare plan and pedestrian and bicycle plan 
8. Final adoption of the thoroughfare plan and pedestrian and bicycle plan 
9. 1st reading of Ordinance No. 981-21 - adopting 2021 International Building Codes 
10.Select proposal to contract event planning services for 2022 TBB 
11.1st reading of Ordinance No. _____, Tax Roll, Brazos County portion 
12.1st reading of Ordinance No. _____, Tax Roll, Grimes County portion 
13.Agreement – Roof at the Rec Center 
14.Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of October 2021; (b) Expenditures for the  
    month of October 2021; (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 980-21, requested annexation; 
    (d) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 981-22, adopting 2021 International Building Codes 
15.Adjourn 

 
 



 
 
 

NOVEMBER 22, 2021 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 11/08/2021 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Board and Commission update; and (b) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. Consent agenda:  (a) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. _____, conditional use permit for 508  
    Peeples – place of worship; (b) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. _____, Tax Roll, Brazos County  
    portion; and (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. ____, Tax Roll, Grimes County portion 
6. Adjourn 

 
 

DECEMBER 13, 2021 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 11/29/2021 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Update on Capital Improvements Project; (b) Board and Commission  
    update; and (c) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of November 2021; and (b) Expenditures for the  
    month of November 2021 
6. Adjourn 

 


	Regular Meeting
	Agenda Item No.  -  City Manager's Message and Statements and Priorities
	 City Manager's Message
	 Statements and Priorities

	Agenda Item No. 4 -  Staff Report:
(a) Airport update;
(b) Introduction of Artist in Residency;
(c) Vote for Washington Ave. campaign;
(d) City Manager message
(e) Proclamation - Municipal Court Week;
(f) Board and Commission update; and
(g) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
	 Proclamation

	Agenda Item No. 5 -  Presentation to the City Manager.
	Agenda Item No. 6 -  Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comments and testimony regarding a voluntary annexation request submitted by James C. Hassell for a 31.79 acre tract of land and a 31.76 acre tract of land in the James J. Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
	Agenda Item No. 7 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 980-21, approving a voluntary annexation request submitted by James C. Hassell for a 31.79 acre tract of land and a 31.76 acre tract of land in the James J. Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
	 Ordinance No. 980-21

	Agenda Item No. 8 -  Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of September 2021.
	 Expenditures for September 2021

	Agenda Item No. 9 -  Consideration and possible action on a sign ordinance appeal submitted by Grimes County Crimes Stoppers for the construction of a free standing sign on the property located at the Southeast corner of Spur 515 and South LaSalle street, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
	 Staff Report
	 Appeal Letter
	 NISD Letter, Site Map, Governor Letter
	 Sign Example
	 City Regulations Comparisons
	 Midland TX Example

	Agenda Item No. 10 -  Consideration and possible action on the agreement for Interim City Manager services by and between Bleyl Interests, Inc. D/B/A Bleyl Engineering and the City of Navasota, Texas.
	 Agreement for Interim City Manager Services

	Agenda Item No. 11 -  Consideration and possible action on lease agreement between the City of Navasota and Boy Scout Troop 361.
	 Agreement with Boy Scout Troop 361
	 Boy Scout Troop 361 Info

	Agenda Item No. 12 -  Consideration and possible action on amendment to the firm transportation and storage agreement with Atmos Pipeline-Texas.
	 previous agreement
	 Amendment to Transportation Agreement

	Agenda Item No. 13 -  Consideration and possible action on appointments to boards and commissions.
	 Boards & Commissions Ballot
	 Board Applications

	Agenda Item No. 14 -  Consideration and possible action on selecting proposal to contract event planning services for the 2022 Texas Birthday Bash.
	 Brand It Graphix Proposal
	 Charlie Diggs and Media Gurus Proposal
	 Maxgray Productions Proposal 2022 TBB

	Agenda Item No. 15 -  Executive Session:  The City Council will conduct an Executive Session in accordance with Section 551.072, Texas Government Code, deliberation regarding real property and discussion regarding the potential sale and/or value of City-owned property.
	Agenda Item No. 16 -  Executive Session:  The City Council shall meet in Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.071, Texas Government Code - Consultation with Attorney - Dispute regarding invoice received from Symmetry Energy Solutions, LLC for natural gas supplied to the City of Navasota for the month of February 2021, and associated matters.
	Agenda Item No. 17 -  Reconvene in open session. 
	Agenda Item No. 18 -  Consideration and possible action on approval of the Competitive Sealed Proposal alternative delivery method, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2269, Subchapter D, as the best-value procurement method for construction of the Public Works Warehouse facility.
	Agenda Item No. 19 -  Discuss and possibly act upon dispute regarding invoice received from Symmetry Energy Solutions, LLC for natural gas supplied to the City of Navasota for the month of February 2021, and associated matters.
	Agenda Item No. 20 -  1. Planning Calendar
	 Planning Calendar




